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M r .  Speaker :  

I have t h e  honour t o  submit h e r e w i t h  a s p e c i a l  r e p o r t  t o  t h e  L e g i s l a t i v e  
Assembly, pursuan t  t o  s e c t i o n  30(2) of t h e  Ombudsman Act,  R.S.B.C. 1979, 
c h a p t e r  306. 

The r e p o r t  d e a l s  w i t h  n i n e  compla in t s  a r i s i n g  ou t  of d e c i s i o n s ,  p r a c t i c e s  
o r  p rocedures  of t h e  Workers' Compensation Board of B r i t i s h  Columbia. It 
summarizes my f i n d i n g s  and recommendations and t h e  responses  of t h e  Board 
i n  e a c h  c a s e .  

T h i s  r e p o r t  c o n s i s t s  of two volumes. Volume 1 c o n t a i n s  my a c t u a l  r e p o r t  
and Appendix A. Volume 2 c o n t a i n s  Appendix B, t h e  documentat ion 
p e r t a i n i n g  t o  e a c h  of t h e  n i n e  i n v e s t i g a t i o n s .  

Yours s i n c e r e l y ,  

/ Ombudsman 
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INTRODUCTION 

T h i s  i s  my second S p e c i a l  Report  t o  t h e  L e g i s l a t i v e  Assembly 

concern ing  t h e  Workers' Compensation Board. It c o n t a i n s  n ine  new 

c a s e s  on  which t h e  Board and I have not  been a b l e  t o  agree .  One of 

t h e  n i n e  r a i s e s  a g a i n  a n  i s s u e  which was d e a l t  wi th  i n  my f i r s t  

r e p o r t  on t h e  Workers' Compensation Board - t h e  problem of d i s a b l i n g  

i n d u s t r i a l  a l l e r g i e s  (Mr. P i p k e ' s  c a s e ) .  The Board ' s  r e s t r i c t i v e  

d e f i n i t i o n  of d i s a b i l i t y  means t h a t  workers  who a r e  exposed t o  

d i s a b l i n g  i n d u s t r i a l  a l l e r g i e s  i n  t h e i r  work p l a c e  and who a r e  no t  

s u i t a b l e  p r o s p e c t s  f o r  r e t r a i n i n g  a r e  den ied  compensation.  Although 

I d e a l t  w i t h  t h i s  i s s u e  i n  S p e c i a l  Repor t  No. 8 ( A p r i l  1984),  t h e  

problem remains.  I b e l i e v e  i t  i s  one which goes  t o  t h e  r o o t  of t h e  

purpose  of workers'  compensation.  

For  t h e  f i r s t  t ime I am a l s o  r e p o r t i n g  on t h e  d i f f i c u l t  i s s u e  of t h e  

Board re imburs ing workers f o r  l e g a l  f e e s  i n c u r r e d  i n  de fend ing  t h e i r  

c l a i m s  a s  a  r e s u l t  of improper Board conduct  (Mr. Temnoff 's  c a s e ) .  

Although t h e  law a l l o w s  t h e  Board t o  make such  payments, t h e  B o a r d ' s  

p o l i c y  i s  never  t o  pay l e g a l  f e e s  under  any c i rcumstances .  I n  my 

o p i n i o n ,  M r .  Temnoff 's  c a s e  i s  e x c e p t i o n a l ,  t h e  Board 's  f a u l t  i s  

c l e a r ,  and M r .  Temnoff 's  l e g a l  f e e s  should  be pa id  by t h e  Board. 

The same phenomenon - t h e  Board ' s  r e f u s a l  t o  e x e r c i s e  i t s  s t a t u t o r y  

d i s c r e t i o n  - i s  evidenced i n  t h e  c a s e s  of M r .  Rahn and M r .  Re lkof f .  

The Workers Compensation Act p r o v i d e s  f o r  two a l t e r n a t i v e  methods of 

c a l c u l a t i n g  pens ion  awards. For y e a r s  t h e  Board r e f u s e d  t o  

implement t h e  second method, n o t w i t h s t a n d i n g  t h e  du ty  imposed by t h e  

law. A s  a  r e s u l t  M r .  Rahn and Mr. Relkoff  were p robab ly  

undercompensated f o r  i n j u r i e s  t h e y  s u f f e r e d .  
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M r .  S o r r e n t i l s  c a s e  i s  a  c l a s s i c  Catch-22 s i t u a t i o n .  The Board 

denied h i s  c l a im  because M r .  S o r r e n t i  could not produce doc to r s1  

r e p o r t s .  M r .  S o r r e n t i  could not a f f o r d  t o  pay f o r  medical t reatment  

because t h e  Board re fused  t o  recognize h i s  work-related i n j u r y .  

Therefore  he d id  not go t o  a  doctor .  

The o t h e r  f i v e  c a s e s  repor ted  a l s o  r a i s e  important  i s s u e s  f o r  t h e  

a t  t e n t i o n  of t he  L e g i s l a t i v e  Assembly. 

I submitted a  r epo r t  on t he se  n ine  ca se s  t o  t h e  Lieu tenant  Governor 

i n  Council  i n  January 1985. Subsequently,  a t  t h e  reques t  of t he  

M i n i s t e r  of Labour, The Honourable T. Segar ty ,  I m e t  with t h e  
Min i s t e r ,  M r .  Walter  F lesher ,  Chairman of t h e  Workers1 Compensation 

Board, and o t h e r  o f f i c i a l s  t o  d i s c u s s  them i n  d e t a i l .  However, 

t h e s e  d i s cus s ions  did not l ead  t o  a  change of t h e  Board's p o s i t i o n  

on any of t h e s e  n ine  cases .  

I am now asking t h e  L e g i s l a t i v e  Assembly t o  a s s i s t  i n  g e t t i n g  

j u s t i c e  t o  t h e s e  complainants.  

Each complainant has agreed that I may use his n a m e  i n  t h i s  S p e c i a l  

Report.  
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M r .  Ben Temnoff 
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Lawyer's Fees  

M r .  Temnof f  ' s wage l o s s  payments had been suspended because h i s  

a d j u d i c a t o r  wanted him t o  f i n d  and prov ide  t h e  Board w i th  medical  

proof t h a t  h i s  ongoing d i s a b i l i t y  was s t i l l  r e l a t e d  t o  h i s  work 

i n j u r y .  Then h i s  a d j u d i c a t o r  t o l d  him t h a t  he expected t o  be 

charg ing  him wi th  f r aud .  M r .  Temnoff was a l s o  t o l d  t h a t  he cou ld  

no t  appea l  any of t h i s  u n t i l  a  d e c i s i o n  was made e i t h e r  t o  c u t  o f f  

o r  t o  r e i n s t a t e  h i s  wage l o s s .  M r .  Temnoff t hen  asked a  lawyer t o  

h e l p  him wi th  h i s  Workers' Compensation c la im.  He was e s p e c i a l l y  

concerned about  t h e  p o s s i b i l i t y  of f r aud  charges .  

Unaware that t h e  a d j u d i c a t o r  iJas s e r i o u s l y  mis represen t ing  Board 

po l i cy ,  t h e  lawyer took t h e  i n i t i a t i v e  i n  a cqu i r i ng  t h e  a p p r o p r i a t e  

medical  r e p o r t s ,  t r i e d  t o  d e a l  wi th  t h e  a l l e g a t i o n s  of f r aud  t h a t  

t h e  a d j u d i c a t o r  kept  r epea t i ng ,  and t r i e d  t o  b r ing  t h e  a d j u d i c a t o r  

t o  a  d e c i s i o n  on t h e  c la im.  M r .  Temnoff had t o  r e l y  on wel fa re  i n  

o r d e r  t o  con t inue  suppo r t i ng  h i s  wife  and c h i l d r e n .  I n  s p i t e  of h i s  

l a l e e r ' s  e f f o r t s ,  a  yea r  passed wi th  no f u r t h e r  d e c i s i o n  on t h e  

f r a u d  cha rges  and no d e c i s i o n  on t h e  medical  in format ion  t h a t  had 

been s e n t  t o  t h e  Board. My o f f i c e  i n t e rvened  a t  t h i s  po in t  on t h e  

grounds of unreasonable  de lay  by t h e  a d j u d i c a t o r .  

The Commissioners accep ted  that t h e r e  was unreasonable  de l ay  and 

t h a t  t h e  a d j u d i c a t o r  was neg l i gen t  i n  t h e  performance of h i s  

d u t i e s .  No f r aud  cha rges  were l a i d .  The a d j u d i c a t o r  had never  even 

r e f e r r e d  t h e  c a s e  f o r  p r o f e s s i o n a l  i n v e s t i g a t i o n  ( a l t h o u g h  Boar3 

p o l i c y  r equ i r ed  him t o ) .  
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M r .  Temnoff's lawyer u l t i m a t e l y  b i l l e d  him $759 .47  f o r  h i s  e f f o r t s  

over  t h a t  year .  A s  t h e  a d j u d i c a t o r '  s improper a c t i o n s  had 

n e c e s s i t a t e d  t h e  h i r i n g  of a lawyer i n  t h e  f i r s t  p l ace ,  I asked t h e  

Board t o  pay M r .  Temnoff's l e g a l  f e e s .  I r e l i e d  upon S e c t i o n  100  of 

t h e  Workers Compensat i o n  Act : 

The Board may award a  sum i t  c o n s i d e r s  reasonable  t o  t h e  

s u c c e s s f u l  p a r t y  t o  a c o n t e s t e d  c l a i m  f o r  compensation o r  t o  any 

o t h e r  c o n t e s t e d  matter t o  meet t h e  expenses  he has been put  t o  

by r ea son  of o r  i n c i d e n t a l  t o  t h e  c o n t e s t  . . . 

Although t h e  Board has a d i s c r e t i o n  t o  pay such  expenses ,  i t s  p o l i c y  

t o  d a t e  has been s imply never  t o  pay l e g a l  f e e s .  The Commissioners 

decided that t hey  were no t  going t o  break w i th  t r a d i t i o n  i n  

M r .  Temnoff's case .  Never t o  a l l ow  a n  excep t i on  t o  a d i s c r e t i o n a r y  

po l i cy ,  no m a t t e r  how compellng t h e  c i rcumstances ,  would mean that 

t h e  Board was f e t t e r i n g  i t s  d i s c r e t i o n  and a c t i n g  i n  a manner t h a t  

was c o n t r a r y  t o  l aw.  Moreover, such  a p o l i c y  i s  un ju s t  because i t  

r e s u l t s  i n  the d e n i a l  of m e r i t o r i o u s  c la ims .  I po in t ed  ou t  t h a t  

M r .  Temnoff's c a s e  was a n  excep t i ona l  one that mer i ted  such an  

e x e r c i s e  of d i s c r e t i o n .  The l e g a l  f e e s  were reasonably  i n c u r r e d  as  

t h e  r e s u l t  of t h e  neg l i gen t  and improper a c t i o n  of t h e  Board 's  own 

employee. 

The f i n a l  word of t h e  Commissioners was that while they  cons idered  

M r .  Temnoff's c a s e  t o  be excep t i ona l ,  i t  was not  e x c e p t i o n a l  i n  a 

way t h a t  j u s t i f i e d  Board payment of h i s  l e g a l  f e e s .  

More t han  t h r e e  y e a r s  has passed s i n c e  h i s  work i n j u r y ,  and 

M r .  Temnof f  h a s  been unable  t o  r e t u r n  t o  work. He has not been 

r e c e i v i n g  compensation. H i s  appea l  was heard  r e c e n t l y ,  but  no 

d e c i s i o n  has been r ece ived  t o  d a t e .  The lawyer i s  p r e s s i n g  f o r  

payment of h i s  b i l l ,  but t h e  Temnof f  f ami ly  is  r ece iv ing  we l f a r e ,  

and cannot a f f o r d  t o  pay i t .  
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Recommendation: 

That the Board pay Mr. Temnof f ' s  lawyer's b i l l  i n  the amount of 

$759 .47 .  (The amount has increased from my original  recommendation 

because of more complete information as t o  the actual charges). 

Ant icipat ed Impact : 

Payment of $759 .47 .  
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M r .  Michele S o r r e n t i  

Catch - 22 

M r .  S o r r e n t i ' s  i n a b i l i t y  t o  jump through t h e  app rop r i a t e  

bu reauc ra t i c  hoops l e d  t o  t h e  d e n i a l  of h i s  workers' compensation 

claim. For over  a yea r  he was forced  t o  s u b s i s t  on income 

a s s i s t a n c e  u n t i l  he was a b l e  t o  walk again.  

M r .  S o r r e n t i ' s  1979 c l a im  f o r  l o s t  wages was refused i n  p a r t  because 

he could not produce doctors '  r e p o r t s  say ing  he had a back i n j u r y .  

To understand why he could not we have t o  go back t o  1972. 

M r .  S o r r e n t i ' s  problems began when he s u f f e r e d  an i n j u r y  t o  h i s  back 

i n  June 1972 while working a s  a mechanic. New t o  t h e  ways of h i s  

adopted Canadian homeland, Mr. S o r r e n t i  f a i l e d  t o  n o t i f y  h i s  

employer of t h e  i n c i d e n t  u n t i l  1 0  months had passed. Nor d id  he 

mention t o  t he  doc to r  who t r e a t e d  him that t h e  i n j u r y  Mas 

work-related. Too much t i m e  had passed s i n c e  t h e  i n j u r y  and t h e  

Board re fused  t o  accept  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  Mr. S o r r e n t i ' s  back 

surgery,  which became necessary i n  Apr i l ,  1973. But i t  appears  t h a t  

t h i s  1972 i n j u r y  was t h e  b a s i s  f o r  h i s  l a t e r  back problems. Medical 

r e p o r t s  from h i s  own phys ic ian  and from t h e  Workers' Compensation 

Board's Medical Advisor l i n k  h i s  cont inu ing  problems t o  degenera t ive  

d i s c  d i s e a s e  i n  h i s  sp ine  on t h e  same s i d e  a s  h i s  opera t ion .  

However, because of M r .  S o r r e n t i '  s f a i l u r e  t o  r epo r t  i n  t i m e  t h i s  

1972 i n j u r y  was never accepted a s  a va l id  Workers' Compensation 

Board claim. However, t h i s  i s  not M r .  S o r r e n t i ' s  c u r r e n t  problem. 

M r .  S o r r e n t i  i n j u r e d  h i s  back aga in  on August 10, 1979 and had t o  

s t a y  of f  work u n t i l  e a r l y  1981. H i s  c la im,  which he submitted i n  

t i m e ,  was i n i t i a l l y  disal lowed.  H e  appealed t o  t h e  boards of rev:ew 

and i n  January of 1981 the  board of review determined t h a t  
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M r .  S o r r e n t i  " su s t a ined  a n  a c u t e  lumbosacral  s t r a i n  . . . which w a s  

superimposed upon a  p r e - ex i s t i ng  non-occupational back condi t ion" .  

The board of review recommended that t h e  Board provide compensation 

f o r  wage l o s s  f o r  t h e  pe r i od  August 11 t o  November 1, 1979 and 

medical  a i d  b e n e f i t s  f o r  t h e  pe r i od  August 14 t o  November 16, 1979. 

November 16, 1979, was t h e  last day f o r  which a d o c t o r ' s  r e p o r t  

e x i s t e d .  

M r .  S o r r e n t i ,  who had been unable t o  work fo l lowing  h i s  August 10, 

1979 acc iden t  u n t i l  sometime e a r l y  i n  1981, appealed t h e  board of 

review d e c i s i o n  t o  t h e  Commissioners. He f e l t  that he should have 

r ece ived  compensation f o r  a l l  of h i s  t ime of f  work. The problem was 

t h a t  M r .  S o r r e n t i  had f a i l e d  t o  s ee  a  d o c t o r  about h i s  c o n d i t i o n  

be t  ween November 16, 1979 and December 10, 1980. Without con t i nu ing  

medical  r e p o r t s  suppor t ing  h i s  c l a im  t h e  Commissioners cou ld  f i n d  no 

b a s i s  f o r  extending h i s  award beyond November 16, 1979. 

M r .  S o r r e n t i  found himself  i n  a  "Catch-22" s i t u a t i o n .  A t  t h e  t i m e  

of h i s  i n j u r y  (August 10, 1979) t h e r e  was no i n d i c a t i o n  t h a t  t h e  

Board would accep t  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  t h i s  c l a im  o r  t h e  medical  c o s t  

a s s o c i a t e d  wi th  i t .  Indeed t h e  c l a im  w a s  a t  f i r s t  denied by t h e  

Board u n t i l  t h e  board of review d e c i s i o n  over  a  yea r  l a t e r .  I n  t h e  

meantime M r .  S o r r e n t i  had no medical  coverage and no income. He 

a l r e a d y  owed h i s  d o c t o r  a lmost  $1,000.00 f o r  o t h e r  s e r v i c e s  

performed. Consequently,  M r .  S o r r e n t i  chose t o  s u f f e r  i n  s i l e n c e  

dur ing  t h i s  pe r iod  of t i m e  r a t h e r  t h a n  i n c u r  f u r t h e r  medical  

expenses ,  which he cou ld  no t  af f o rd .  A s  i t  tu rned  o u t ,  without such  

v i s i t s  t o  t he  d o c t o r  he was not a b l e  t o  suppor t  h i s  c la im.  H e  had 

t o  seek  p r o v i n c i a l  income a s s i s t a n c e  t o  ma in t a in  himself  and h i s  

family .  

Other  persons  ( n o t  doc tors )  gave m e  tes t imony a s  t o  M r .  S o r r e n t i '  s 

con t inu ing  d i s a b i l i t y .  These were f r i e n d s  and neighbours  who had 

c o n t a c t  wi th  M r .  S o r r e n t i  dur ing  h i s  t ime of f  work. A l l  agreed t h a t  
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M r .  S o r r e n t i ' s  back cond i t ion  was seen t o  be pa in fu l  and 

d e b i l i t a t i n g .  I recommended t h a t  the Board accept  M r .  S o r r e n t i '  s 

claim. The Board, however, f e l t  t h a t  t hese  s tatements  were t o o  

unce r t a in  t o  provide a proper b a s i s  f o r  determing the  ex ten t  of any 

d i s a b i l i t y  t h a t  might have ex i s t ed .  The Board refused t o  pay 

f u r t h e r  compensation. The Board s a i d  i t  could not conjec ture  about 

a workman's d i s a b i l i t y  even on the  b a s i s  of sympathy. 

I am not asking f o r  any cons ide ra t ion  of sympathy i n  M r .  S o r r e n t i ' s  

case.  The a v a i l a b l e  evidence suppor ts  h i s  claim. I f  evidence Is 

missing, i t  is  a t  l e a s t  i n  p a r t  due t o  the  Board's i n i t i a l  e r r o r  i n  

r e j e c t i n g  t h e  c la im and placing an  undue burden of proof on 

M r .  So r ren t i .  

Recommendation: 

That t he  Board accept  M r .  S o r r e n t i ' s  c la im f o r  h i s  1979 back i n j u r y  

from November 16, 1979 t o  December 10, 1980. 

Ant i c i ~ a t e d  I m ~ a c  t : 

Payment of about one yea r ' s  wage l o s s  bene f i t s .  
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M r .  S t a n l e y  McKay 

Defeated by a T e c h n i c a l i t y  

Confusion abou t  t h e  c o r r e c t  way t o  r e p o r t  h i s  i n j u r y  l e d  t o  t h e  

r e j e c t i o n  of S t a n l e y  McKay' s o t h e r i s e  v a l i d  c la im.  

I n  December 1978, M r .  McKay was i n j u r e d  a t  work when he s l i p p e d  on a 

p i e c e  of e l e c t r i c a l  condui t  and f e l l  h e a v i l y  on h i s  l e f t  s i d e .  T h i s  

i n j u r y  caused a n  a g g r a v a t i o n  of a p r e - e x i s t i n g  c o n d i t i o n  ( i n  1972 he 

had a  t o t a l  l e f t  h i p  replacement)  and r e s u l t e d  i n  numerous 

o p e r a t i o n s .  The Board d i d  not  r e c e i v e  M r .  McKay's a p p l i c a t i o n  f o r  

compensation u n t i l  February  1980. T h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n  was r e j e c t e d  

because it Mas submi t t ed  o u t s i d e  t h e  one y e a r  l i m i t a t i o n  per iod .  

Fol lowing t h e  Board ' s  r e f u s a l  of t h i s  c l a i m ,  t h i n g s  went r a p i d l y  

downhi l l  f o r  M r .  McKay. H i s  h e a l t h  d e t e r i o r a t e d .  H i s  f a m i l y  l i f e  

w a s  d i s r u p t e d .  With no income and being unable  t o  work, he was 

f o r c e d  t o  l i q u i d a t e  h i s  a s s e t s  and t h e n  s e e k  income a s s i s t a n c e .  

The c i r c u m s t a n c e s  of M r .  McKay's c a s e  a r e  q u i t e  unique. I n  January  

1979, M r .  McKay f i l l e d  o u t  a  compensation form and l e f t  i t  w i t h  h i s  

s u p e r v i s o r  a s  he thought  he was r e q u i r e d  t o  do. The s u p e r v i s o r  was 

supposed t o  submit Mr. McKay's and t h e  company's a p p l i c a t i o n  t o  t h e  

Board. It was not u n t i l  October  1979 t h a t  M r .  McKay d i scovered  that 

h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n  had no t  been submi t t ed  t o  t h e  Board. However, s i n c e  

he was under t h e  mis taken  impress ion  that a n  a p p l i c a t i o n  f o r  

compensation must be submi t t ed  th rough  a worker ' s  s u p e r v i s o r ,  he 

a t t empted  t o  t r a c k  him down s o  that he cou ld  submit a n o t h e r  

a p p l i c a t i o n .  U n f o r t u n a t e l y ,  he was no t  a b l e  t o  l o c a t e  t h e  

s u p e r v i s o r ,  who had been t r a n s f e r r e d ,  u n t i l  February 1980. A t  that 

time a  new compensation a p p l i c a t i o n  was submi t t ed  f o r  Mr. McKay. 

M r .  McKay's s t o r y  i s  confirmed by a le t ter  f rom t h e  s u p e r v i s o r  da ted  

August 19,  1981 which s t a t e s :  
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H e  came a f t e r  t h e  Christmas and N e w  Year 's  ho l idays  t o  p ick  up 

h i s  t o o l s  and d iscussed  the  m a t t e r  wi th  m e  and requested that I 

submit a  r epo r t  t o  t h e  W.C.B., I agreed t o  do t h i s ,  however, I 

s a i d  I d idn ' t  have t i m e  a t  t h e  presen t  bu t  I would f i l l  i t  ou t  

l a t e r .  Somehow o r  another  we became busy and I was t r a n s f e r r e d  

t o  another  p r o j e c t  i n  V i c t o r i a  i n  February and i n  t h e  process  

t h e  le t ter  became fo rgo t t en .  .. There was a  form made out  a t  t h e  

t i m e .  It must have been l o s t  o r  misplaced. 

One of t h e  reasons  f o r  M r .  McKay's i n i t i a l  l a c k  of concern about h i s  

workers' compensation b e n e f i t s  r e l a t e d  t o  h i s  mistaken b e l i e f  t h a t  

h i s  company's p r i v a t e  insurance would cover  t h e  e n t i r e  per iod of h i s  

d i s a b i l i t y .  He was not  i n i t i a l l y  aware of the se r iousnes s  of h i s  

i n  jury. 

I n  response t o  my recommendation, t h e  Commissioners s t a t e d  t h a t  they 

found i t  d i f f i c u l t  t o  a t t r i b u t e  t h e  f a i l u r e  of M r .  McKay t o  apply t o  

t h e  f a c t  that t h e  supe rv i so r  had f a i l e d  t o  make a  r epo r t .  S ince  

M r .  McKay had previous compensation claims,  t h e  Commissioners f e l t  

he had a  g e n e r a l  awareness of t he  procedura l  requirements f o r  a  

claim. I n  t h e i r  op in ion  he should have pursued the m a t t e r  f u r t h e r  

when he rece ived  no b e n e f i t s  o r  n o t i f i c a t i o n  from t h e  Board 

regarding h i s  c la im.  

Furthermore, i n  o r d e r  t o  u t i l i z e  their s t a t u t o r y  d i s c r e t i o n  f o r  a n  

ex t ens ion  of t i m e ,  t h e i r  po l i cy  requi red  t h a t  t h e r e  must f i r s t  e x i s t  

s p e c i a l  c i rcumstances which precluded t h e  f i l i n g  of a n  app l i ca t i on .  

I n  t h i s  p a r t i c u l a r  c a s e  i t  was t h e i r  opinion t h a t  such s p e c i a l  

c i rcumstances d id  not e x i s t .  The Commissioners s t a t e d  t h a t  t h e  f a c t  

t h a t  t h e  claimant  had a n  otherwise mer i t o r ious  c l a im  could not be 

s a i d  t o  be a  s p e c i a l  c i rcumstance j u s t i f y i n g  t h e  use of t h e i r  

s t a t u t o r y  d i s c r e t i o n .  I n  my opinion,  t h e  s u p e r v i s o r ' s  l o s s  of 

M r .  McKay's i n i t i a l  a p p l i c a t i o n  was a  s p e c i a l  c i rcumstance 

s u f f i c i e n t  t o  j u s t i f y  t h e  Commissioners' ex tens ion  of t h e  f i l i n g  
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l i m i t a t i o n  per iod.  Once t h e  Commissioners decide t h a t  s p e c i a l  

c i rcumstances e x i s t ,  Board po l icy  a l lows  a  "very wide d i s c r e t i o n  t o  

accept  c la ims  r e g a r d l e s s  of how t a rdy  t h e  app l i ca t i on" .  

The Board i n i t i a l l y  f e l t  t h a t  t h e  supe rv i so r ' s  s ta tement  of August 

19, 1981 was ambiguous concerning whether M r .  McKay had a c t u a l l y  

submitted h i s  compensation a p p l i c a t i o n  t o  him t o  be submitted t o  t he  

Board. A s  a  r e s u l t  I received a  f u r t h e r  s ta tement  from t h e  

supe rv i so r  confirming t h i s  information.  However, t h i s  was s t i l l  not 

enough t o  convince t h e  Commissioners. It was t h e i r  op in ion  t h a t  

from the  t ime Mr. McKay was aware that h i s  a p p l i c a t i o n  had not  been 

submitted he s t i l l  had t i m e  t o  submit a  second a p p l i c a t i o n  before  

t h e  one year  t i m e  per iod  expired.  However, a s  s t a t e d  e a r l i e r ,  

M r .  McKay he ld  t h e  erroneous be l i e f  t h a t  he could only submit 

another  a p p l i c a t i o n  through t h e  superv isor .  Following h i s  previous 

a c c i d e n t s  he had submitted h i s  compensation a p p l i c a t i o n s  through h i s  

superv isor .  He regarded t h i s  a s  a  necessary s t e p  i n  applying f o r  

compensation. This mistaken be l i e f  should not d i s e n t i t l e  M r .  McKay 

t o  h i s  r i g h t f u l  compensation bene f i t s .  

Sec t ion  99 of t h e  Act r e q u i r e s  t h e  Board t o  decide "according t o  t h e  

merits and j u s t i c e  of t h e  case".  I n  my opinion,  t h e  Board has 

f a i l e d  t o  observe t h e  s p i r i t  of t h i s  p rovis ion  i n  M r .  McKayls case .  

( I  addressed the  problem of va l id  c la ims  being denied because of a  

breach of t e c h n i c a l  requirements i n  my f i r s t  S p e c i a l  Report on t h e  

Workers1 Compensation Board: S p e c i a l  Report No. 8 t o  t h e  L e g i s l a t i v e  

Assembly of B.C., Apr i l  1984, Case No. 4) 

A s  a  r e s u l t  of a  f u r t h e r  ope ra t i on  h i s  h e a l t h  problems were f i n a l l y  

overcome, and M r .  McKay, I am happy t o  say, i s  now g e t t i n g  back on 

h i s  f e e t .  
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Recommendation: 

That the Board allow Mr. McKay an extension of t i m e  t o  f i l e  h i s  

application. 

Anticipated Impact: 

Payment of Mr. McKay's claim. 
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M r .  Harold Berrow 

No Compensation f o r  Small  Bus iness  Owner 

The Board 's  c o l l e c t i o n  p r a c t i c e s  r e s u l t  i n  ha r she r  t r e a tmen t  of 

workers who own t h e i r  own bus ine s s  t han  i t  does f o r  employees of 

l a r g e r  e n t e r p r i s e s .  M r .  Berrow has  f e l t  t h e  brunt  of t h e s e  

p r a c t i c e s .  The Board he ld  back M r .  Berrow' s wage l o s s  b e n e f i t s  f o r  

two weeks, s i n c e  he i s  t h e  p r i n c i p a l  owner of a  smal l  l i m i t e d  

company. The company had not pa id  t h e  Board i t s  f i r s t  q u a r t e r ' s  

assessment .  It was my op in ion  t h a t  t h e  Board 's  r e f u s a l  t o  pay 

M r .  Berrow's wage l o s s  b e n e f i t s  u n t i l  h i s  company had paid  i t s  f i r s t  

q u a r t e r ' s  assessment was oppress ive .  An a u t h o r i t y  a c t s  opp re s s ive ly  

when i t  uses  i t s  s u p e r i o r  p o s i t i o n  o r  knowledge t o  p l ace  t h e  c i t i z e n  

at  a n  unreasonable  disadvantage.  A s  a worker, M r .  Berrow w a s  

e n t i t l e d  t o  payment of wage l o s s  b e n e f i t s .  Such b e n e f i t s  t ake  t h e  

p l a c e  of l o s t  l i v e l i h o o d ,  which a worker ought no t  be depr ived  of 

f o r  t h e  purpose of en fo r c ing  a deb t  t o  t h e  Board i n  a  m a t t e r  

u n r e l a t e d  t o  h i s  c la im.  

The Commissioners responded t o  my recommendation by s t a t i n g  that i t  

i s  t h e  Board 's  p r a c t i c e ,  i f  a  smal l  l i m i t e d  company does no t  pay i t s  

assessment  l i a b i l i t y ,  t o  deduct t h e  amount owed by t h e  company from 

wage l o s s  b e n e f i t s  payable  t o  t h e  p r i n c i p a l .  I n  M r .  Berrow's c a s e  

t h e  Board was simply g iv ing  him t h e  oppo r tun i t y  t o  pay h i s  

ou t s tand ing  assessment  before  i t  deducted t h e  amount owing from h i s  

wage l o s s  b e n e f i t s .  It w a s  t he  Commissioners' op in ion  that i t  was 

f a i r e r  t o  g i v e  t h e  p r i n c i p a l  a n  oppo r tun i t y  of t h i s  n a t u r e  r a t h e r  

t h a n  simply deduct t h e  amount owing without  warning. Furthermore,  

t h e  Board s t a t e d ,  s i n c e  assessment money i s  a  source  of compensation 

b e n e f i t s ,  i t  was not reasonable  t o  o t h e r  employees t o  a l l ow  company 

p r i n c i p a l s  t o  be pa id  f u l l  b e n e f i t s  when t h e i r  company has  a n  

ou t s t and ing  assessment l i a b i l i t y .  
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I responded that i n  my view an  i n j u r e d  worker should not be t r e a t e d  

d i f f e r e n t l y  j u s t  because he i s  a l s o  p r i n c i p a l  of t h e  employer 

company. The two a r e  l e g a l l y  separa te .  ( I  recommended t h a t  t h e  

Board observe t h i s  p r i n c i p l e  i n  my f i r s t  S p e c i a l  Report on t h e  

Workers' Compensation Board: S p e c i a l  Report No. 8, A p r i l  1984, Case 

No. 7.) However, s i n c e  t h e  Commissioners s t a t e d  they  d id  not 

withhold wage l o s s  b e n e f i t s  ( a s  opposed t o  long-term pensions)  a s  a  

technique f o r  f o r c i n g  employers t o  pay outs tanding  assessments,  I 

modified my recommendation. It was my new recommendation t h a t  t h e  

Board should not a t t a c h  a  worker 's  b e n e f i t s  t o  recover  h i s  company's 

ou ts tanding  assessment debt  u n t i l  t h e  c o l l e c t i o n  remedies enumerated 

i n  D iv i s ion  4 of t h e  Act had been unsuccess fu l ly  pursued. These are 

( i )  suing i n  cou r t ,  and ( i i )  f i l i n g  a  c e r t i f i c a t e  of t h e  debt  i n  

cou r t .  

The Board d isagreed  wi th  my recommendation. It s a i d  that my 

proposal  would r e s u l t  i n  t h e  Board paying money out  wi th  one hand 

and at tempting t o  c o l l e c t  an assessment owed with t h e  o the r .  I n  my 

opinion, t h e  same would be t r u e  i f  M r .  Berrow worked f o r  a  l a r g e  

co rpo ra t i on  that had f a i l e d  t o  pay i t s  assessments.  

It i s  my opinion t h a t  t h e  en t i t l emen t  of a worker t o  wage l o s s  

b e n e f i t s  and t h e  Assessment Department's c o l l e c t i o n  of assessment 

d e b t s  a r e  two s e p a r a t e  ma t t e r s  a l t o g e t h e r  and should be kept 

separa te .  The Board's p r a c t i c e  t r e a t s  small  bus inesses  more harsh ly  

than  l a r g e  companies and t h e i r  employees and i s  improperly 

d i sc r imina tory .  

Recommendation: 

That t h e  Board adopt t h e  p r a c t i c e  of not a t t a c h i n g  a  worker 's  

b e n e f i t s  t o  recover  h i s  company's ou ts tanding  assessment debt  u n t i l  

t h e  o t h e r  a v a i l a b l e  c o l l e c t i o n  remedies have been unsuccess fu l ly  

pursued. 
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Anticipated Impact : 

Unfair shortcuts t o  c o l l e c t i n g  outstanding assessments would be 

eliminated. 
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Mr. John Rahn and M r .  William Relkoff 
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The "Dual System" 

The Board has  a  choice  of two methods of c a l c u l a t i n g  t h e  value of an  

i n j u r e d  worker1 s d isab i l i ty - -1 .  t h e  phys i ca l  impairment method and 

2. t h e  l o s s  of ea rn ings  method. The worker i s  usua l ly  awarded the  

l a r g e r  sum produced by t h e s e  two c a l c u l a t i o n s .  The f i r s t  method i s  

based on a  l i s t  of percentages  of t o t a l  d i s a b i l i t y  ass igned t o  t h e  

l o s s  of use of p a r t i c u l a r  p a r t s  of t h e  body. Under t he  second 

method the  Board measures d i s a b i l i t y  by awarding 75% of t he  

d i f f e r e n c e  between the  worker 's  average ea rn ings  p r i o r  t o  t h e  i n j u r y  

and t h e  average amount he i s  ab l e  t o  e a r n  a f t e r  t h e  i n j u r y .  The 

process  of making both  c a l c u l a t i o n s  and awarding t h e  h igher  amount 

i s  c a l l e d  " the  dua l  system" by t h e  Board. 

S i m i l a r  p rovis ions  i n  workers' compensation l e g i s l a t i o n  have been i n  

e f f e c t  s i nce  1943, and i n  that yea r  t h e  p rov i s ions  were made 

r e t r o a c t i v e  t o  1917. However, d e s p i t e  t h e  l e g i s l a t i o n ,  t h e  Board 

d id  not i n s t i t u t e  a  "dual  system" p o l i c y  u n t i l  1973 (and then  f o r  

s p i n a l  i n j u r i e s  on ly) .  The "dual  system" was extended i n  1977 t o  

o t h e r  t ypes  of i n j u r i e s .  U n t i l  then  only t h e  phys i ca l  impairment 

method was used t o  c a l c u l a t e  awards. 

I have i n v e s t i g a t e d  two cases  i n  which t h e  Board1 s f a i l u r e  t o  

e x e r c i s e  i t s  d i s c r e t i o n  t o  apply t h e  l o s s  of earn ings  method p r i o r  

t o  1973 may have adverse ly  a f f e c t e d  c la imants ,  a s  t h e i r  pensions 

were c a l c u l a t e d  only according t o  t h e  phys i ca l  impairment method and 

no cons ide ra t i on  was g iven  t o  t h e i r  a c t u a l  l o s s  of earn ings .  

One such worker i s  M r .  Rahn, who su f f e r ed  a  back s t r a i n  a t  work i n  

1951, while working a s  a  f a l l e r  and bucker. In- 1955 and 1958 

M r .  Rahn underwent back surgery and was awarded a  pension by t h e  
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Board. After  t h i s  ope ra t i on ,  M r .  Rahn changed h i s  occupa t ion  t o  

that of l i g h t  mechanical  work and s t a t e d  that h i s  income was reduced 

by more t han  50% as  a r e s u l t .  

M r .  Rahn's pension w a s  based on a f u n c t i o n a l  award of 7.5% of t o t a l  

d i s a b i l i t y  and t h e  Board d i d  no t  c o n s i d e r  h i s  repor ted  l o s s  of 

e a rn ings  as a r e s u l t  of h i s  i n j u r y .  Because of my recommendation, 

t h e  Board agreed t o  a s s e s s  M r .  Rahn's pension under  t h e  l o s s  of 

e a r n i n g s  method as of 1973 when t h e  "dual  system" ( f o r  s p i n a l  

d i s a b i l i t i e s )  came i n t o  e f f e c t .  However, t h e  Board r e fu sed  t o  

a s s e s s  h i s  pension under t h i s  method beyond 1973. 

Another complainant ,  M r .  Relkoff , was s e v e r e l y  i n j u r e d  at work i n  

1945 i n  a  logging acc iden t  when he was 21 y e a r s  o ld .  Th i s  a cc iden t  

r e s u l t e d  i n  l e g ,  v i s i o n  and hear ing  d i s a b i l i t i e s .  I n  1948 he w a s  

i n j u r e d  i n  a second logging acc iden t .  The Board awarded him a 

pension f o r  h i s  i n j u r i e s .  However, a f t e r  t h e  second a c c i d e n t  

M r .  Relkoff was not  a b l e  t o  r e t u r n  t o  logging and i n s t e a d  opera ted  a 

grocery  s t o r e  w i th  h i s  wi fe  f o r  many yea r s ,  and worked as a s e c u r i t y  

guard f o r  tdo yea r s .  He has  been on a  Handicapped Persons  Income 

Allowance from t h e  M i n i s t r y  of Human Resources s i n c e  1973. The 

Board d i d  not cons ide r ,  i n  awarding M r .  Relkoff a  pension, whether 

he had s u f f e r e d  a l o s s  of e a rn ings  as a  r e s u l t  of h i s  i n j u r y ,  as 

provided by t h e  l e g i s l a t i o n .  

I found t h a t  t h e  Board 's  f a i l u r e  t o  make and choose between t h e  two 

c a l c u l a t i o n s  when de te rmin ing  t h e  amounts of M r .  Rahn's and 

M r .  R e l k o f f ' s  pension awards was c o n t r a r y  t o  l a w .  The Workers 

Compensation Act r e q u i r e s  t h e  Board t o  make a genuine cho ice .  I ts  

f a i l u r e  t o  c o n s i d e r  bo th  a l t e r n a t i v e s  and choose one c o n s t i t u t e d  a n  

unlawful  f e t t e r i n g  of t h e  Board 's  d i s c r e t i o n .  I recommended t h a t  

t h e  Board r econs ide r  M r .  Rahn' s and Mr. Relkof f '  s pension awards 

t ak ing  i n t o  account  t h e  two methods of c a l c u l a t i n g  adards .  
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The Commissioners r ep l i ed  that when the  Workers Compensation Act i s  

changed, o r  t he  Board a l t e r s  i t s  previous p r a c t i c e  so a s  t o  increase  

the  b e n e f i t s  payable t o  workers, t h e  ques t ion  always a r i s e s  a s  t o  

whether the change should be made r e t r o a c t i v e  o r  should only apply 

a f t e r  a c e r t a i n  da te .  The Commissioners f e l t  that a s  the  previous 

claims were properly d e a l t  with on t h e  b a s i s  of t he  law and p r a c t i c e  

a s  it then was, i t  cannot be s a i d  that claimants  have been d e a l t  

with un fa i r ly .  They s t a t e d  t h a t  t h e r e  would be enormous p r a c t i c a l  

problems and c o s t s  assoc ia ted  with con t inua l ly  changing o ld  

dec is ions  i n  l i g h t  of changing p r a c t i c e s  and laws. 

I pointed out ,  cont rary  t o  the Board's claim, that i n  these  cases  

the law had not changed s ince  the  claimants  were awarded t h e i r  

func t iona l  pensions, but r a t h e r  i t  has been the Board's p r a c t i c e  o r  

pol icy  t h a t  has changed. P o l i c i e s  must fo l low the  law. Therefore, 

I do not see why these  claimants  should be t r e a t e d  any d i f f e r e n t l y  

from a person who was assessed f o r  a pension a f t e r  t he  Board adopted 

a new policy.  I n  my view the  complainants had been t r e a t e d  u n f a i r l y  

because, a l though t h e i r  c laims were d e a l t  with on the  b a s i s  of t he  

p r a c t i c e  a s  i t  then was, the  p r a c t i c e  did not conform with the  law. 

The Commissioners a l s o  objected t o  my recommendation on t h e  ground 

that no exception could be made i n  an  ind iv idua l  case without a l s o  

doing the  same f o r  a l l  persons receiving s p i n a l  pensions a t  t he  time 

the  dual  system was introduced. My response t o  t h i s  i s  that the  

imposs ib i l i t y  of doing j u s t i c e  f o r  every claimant i n  a p a r t i c u l a r  

c l a s s  cannot j u s t i f y  the  r e f u s a l  t o  do j u s t i c e  f o r  any of them. 

Recommendation: 

That the  Board recons ider  M r .  Rahn's and M r .  Re lkoff ' s  pension 

awards under t h e  "dual  system" of c a l c u l a t i n g  awards. 
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Antic ipated Impact : 

Payment of increased pensions  t o  Mr. Rahn and Mr. Re lkof f .  



Case No. 6 

M r .  Warren Ross 

Page 1 8  

Correct ing an Old E r r o r  

The worker who be l i eves  that h i s  c la im has been u n f a i r l y  denied i s  

l e f t  wi th  a sense  of i n j u s t i c e  t h a t  does not  r e a d i l y  d i s s i p a t e ;  and 

that worker w i l l  t r y  t o  s e i z e  every pos s ib l e  oppor tun i ty  t o  have 

t h a t  perceived i n j u s t i c e  co r r ec t ed  - months, years ,  even decades 

a f t e r  t h e  p r e c i p i t a t i n g  event .  

M r .  Ross reported an i n j u r y  while employed a t  t h e  Elk F a l l s  Company 

Ltd. pulp m i l l  i n  Campbell River  on December 29, 1966. H e  f e l t  a 

pa in  i n  h i s  lower back when he pu l l ed  a sho r t  block of f  a loading 

conveyor with a picaroon while lean ing  over  a waist-high r a i l i n g .  

H e  rece ived  heat  t rea tment  f o r  twenty minutes a t  t he  f i r s t  a i d  

s t a t i o n  and re turned  t o  a d i f f e r e n t  job f o r  t h e  remainder of t h e  

s h i f t .  M r .  Ross was unable t o  r epo r t  t o  work t h e  fo l lowing  day 

because of pa in  and s t i f f n e s s  i n  h i s  back. H i s  doc to r  r e f e r r e d  him 

t o  t h e  Campbell River  General Hospi ta l ,  where he remained u n t i l  

January 13, 1967. H i s  doc to r  i n d i c a t e d  t h a t  M r .  Ross was a b l e  t o  

resume h i s  usua l  employment a s  of A p r i l  1, 1967. 

The Board denied M r .  Ross' c la im i n  a l e t t e r  da ted  February 2, 

1967. The a d j u d i c a t o r  wrote: 

... it would appear  that you were doing your normal work and a s  

nothing unusual has been descr ibed  a s  occur r ing  i t  i s  ou r  

op in ion  that t h i s  work a c t i v i t y  on December 29, 1966, was not 

r e spons ib l e  f o r  t h e  back d i s a b i l i t y  f o r  which you complained and 

sought medical a t  t en t ion .  

M r .  Ross' c la im was considered by a Board of Review on August 23, 

1973. I n  a l e t t e r  of t h a t  d a t e  t h e  Chairman of t h e  Board of Review 

s t a t e d :  
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It should be pointed out  that a t  t he  time your c la im was 

i n i t i a t e d ,  t he  Workman' s Compensation Act only au thor ized  

compensation f o r  "personal  i n j u r y  by accident ."  [ o r i g i n a l  

emphasis] The Board has advised you on d i f f e r e n t  occasions t h a t  

you have not e s t a b l i s h e d  en t i t l emen t  i n  accordance with t h i s  

requirement . 

The Commissioners confirmed the  dec i s ions  of t h e  Claims Department 

and Board of Review. 

I n  January 1983, M r .  Ross' l e g a l  a i d  adv i so r  submitted a reques t  f o r  

t h e  Commissioners t o  recons ider  h i s  f i l e .  She argued t h a t  t he  Board 

of Review e r r e d  i n  law i n  1973 when i t  took the  p o s i t i o n  t h a t  

M r .  Ross' c la im should be denied because no s p e c i f i c  acc iden t  had 

occurred a t  the time of M r .  Ross' i n ju ry .  

The Commissioners agreed with t h i s  argument. However, they a l s o  

noted that M r .  Ross' c la im was denied i n  1967 because t he  Board 

a d j u d i c a t o r  decided t h a t  M r .  Ross' i n j u r y  d id  not r e s u l t  from h i s  

work. Since the  o r i g i n a l  dec i s ions  on the  c la im were not based on 

an e r r o r  of law, they concluded t h a t  t he se  dec i s ions  could only be 

reviewed by the  Commissioners i f  new evidence was submitted i n  

support  of M r .  Ross' claim. Since no new evidence had been 

submitted, the  review was dismissed and the  d e n i a l  of M r .  Ross' 
c la im was upheld. 

A f t e r  i n v e s t i g a t i o n ,  I found that t h e  evidence supported M r .  Ross' 

c la im t h a t  h i s  back problems r e s u l t e d  from h i s  work. The p a i n  

developed while he was a t  work and was reported t o  the  employer. On 

a l l  occasions M r .  Ross was working a s  a loaderman i n  t h e  Groundwood 

Department which involves  the  l i f t i n g  and p u l l i n g  s t r a i n  t o  t he  

back. M r .  Ross repor ted  back pa ins  on s e v e r a l  occasions but made no 

c la im f o r  compensation u n t i l  a f t e r  t h e  f i n a l  i n j u r y  on December 29, 
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1966. M r .  Ross' previous back complaints  a r e  c o n s i s t e n t  with a 

cond i t i on  which developed over time a s  t h e  r e s u l t  of work-required 

motion. 

The Commissioners responded t o  my Prel iminary Report s t a t i n g :  

There is  no d i spu te  t h a t  M r .  Ross su f f e red  an  onse t  of back 

complaints while at work. The ques t ion  a t  i s s u e  is whether 

those  complaints  r e s u l t e d  from his work. The Board denied h i s  

c laim on t h e  b a s i s  that a t  t h e  time i n  ques t ion  he was doing h i s  

normal work and nothing unusual occurred. It appears  t o  t h e  

Commissioners that t h i s  dec i s ion  was b a s i c a l l y  one of judgment 

reached by t h e  Board a t  t h e  time and can see  no grounds f o r  

t h e i r  reconsidering i t .  

I argued that c e r t a i n  jobs could r e s u l t  i n  i n j u r y  by the  performance 

of c e r t a i n  work required motions. The Commissioners had recognized 

this p r i n c i p l e  when they s e t  down Repor te r  Decis ion #145. However, 

t h e  p o s i t i o n  of t h e  present  Commissioners on t h i s  po in t  was: 

It does not seem t o  the  Commissioners that t h e  Board's p o l i c i e s  

of today should be used a s  c r i t e r i a  f o r  reconsidering Board 

dec i s ions  made when t h e  same p o l i c i e s  were not i n  e f f e c t .  A 

dec i s ion  can only be judged on t h e  b a s i s  of t h e  law and po l i cy  

i n  e f f e c t  when i t  is made. The Commissioners cons ide r  that t h e  

dec i s ion  on M r .  Ross' c la im was reasonable by t h e  s tandards  of 

t h e  time and should, t he re fo re ,  be l e f t  unchanged. 

I n  my view M r .  Ross' i n j u r y  a rose  out  of and i n  t h e  course of h i s  

employment. The acc ident  which caused M r .  Ross' i n j u r y  was 

i d e n t i f i e d .  It occurred a t  work. There i s  no evidence i n  t h e  c la im 

f i l e  t o  c o n t r a d i c t  t he  presumption that because t h e  acc ident  

occurred i n  t h e  course of t h e  employment, i t  a rose  out  of t h e  

employment. Even i f  a s p e c i f i c  i nc iden t  o r  acc ident  could not be 
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i d e n t i f i e d ,  t h e  ev idence  suppo r t s  t h e  conc lu s ion  that on t h e  ba lance  

of p r o b a b i l i t i e s  M r .  Ross s u f f e r e d  a compensable i n j u r y  on December 

29, 1966. 

The Commissioners ob j ec t ed  that I w a s  simply reweighing t h e  ev idence  

and s u b s t i t u t i n g  my judgment f o r  that of t h e  Board. They contended 

t h a t  t h e  Board had made a l e g i t i m a t e  d e c i s i o n  t o  deny t h i s  c l a im  f o r  

which t h e r e  was suppo r t i ng  evidence and which was i n  accordance w i th  

t h e  p r a c t i c e  and p o l i c y  of t h e  t ime. The Commissioners mainta ined 

t h a t  I had provided no grounds which would j u s t i f y  a change i n  t h a t  

d e c i s i o n  and t h u s  t h e  d i sa l lowance  of t h i s  c l a im  would be mainta ined.  

I n  my view i t  i s  no t  good enough t o  deny j u s t i c e  simply because i t  

was accep t ab l e  t o  do s o  a t  t h e  t ime t h e  d e c i s i o n  was made. I f  we 

c an  c o r r e c t  e r roneous  d e c i s i o n s ,  t h e r e  i s  no good reason  f o r  

r e f u s i n g  t o  do so.  The Workers Compensation Act p rov ides  that t h e  

Board s h a l l  dec ide  "according t o  t h e  m e r i t s  and j u s t i c e  of t h e  

case" .  The Board i s  a l s o  empowered t o  r e cons ide r  any of i t s  

prev ious  d e c i s i o n s .  I n  Mr. Ross' c a s e  j u s t i c e  r e q u i r e s  t h a t  a n  

e r roneous  d e c i s i o n  be c o r r e c t e d ,  and t h e  l a w  a l l ows  t h e  Board t o  do 

S O .  

S ince  t h e  i n c i d e n t  i n  1966 M r .  Ross has had t o  engage i n  l i g h t e r ,  

l e s s  wel l  paying work, and has  con t inued  t o  exper ience  problems w i th  

h i s  lower back. 

Recommendation: 

That t h e  Board accep t  M r .  Ross' c la im.  

An t i c ipa t ed  Impact : 

R e t r o a c t i v e  payment of M r .  Ross' c la im.  
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M r .  John Gray 
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Sometimes I come a c r o s s  s i t u a t i o n s  where people have t o  use t h e i r  

own money t o  pay f o r  t h e  consequences of a  work i n j u r y  when the  

consequences a r e  r e a l l y  a  Board r e s p o n s i b i l i t y .  This  was the  ca se  

with M r .  Gray. 

P r i o r  t o  February 1980 M r .  Gray had no s i g n i f i c a n t  back problems. 

On February 25, 1980 he f e l l  off  a  l adde r  and landed on h i s  

but tocks.  H i s  c la im was accepted and he rece ived  wage l o s s .  

However, he developed p e r s i s t e n t  back complaints ,  and a  d e f e c t  of 

t he  ve r t eb rae  was u l t i m a t e l y  diagnosed i n  March 1982. S u r g i c a l  

t reatment  was recommended by h i s  o r thopedic  s p e c i a l i s t .  The Board 

re fused  t o  accept  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  t h i s  surgery and he ld  t h a t  t h e  

need f o r  t he  surgery  was due t o  a  pre -ex is t ing  condi t ion .  M r .  Gray 

underwent surgery i n  September 1982 and he was unava i lab le  f o r  work 

due t o  post-operat ive recovery f o r  s i x  months. During t h i s  t ime the  

f ami ly  cashed i n  t h e i r  RRSP and o t h e r  sav ings  i n  o rde r  t o  keep t h e i r  

house. M r .  Gray now r e p o r t s  only minor s t i f f n e s s  and cons ide r s  t h e  

ope ra t i on  a  success .  

M r .  Gray complained that the  Board should have compensated him f o r  

h i s  surgery  and f o r  t he  per iod he was unable t o  work due t o  

convalescence from the  surgery. I recommended t o  t h e  Board t h a t  

M r .  Gray's c la im be accepted.  I based my recommendation on 

S e c t i o n  14:10 of t he  Board 's  Claims Adjudicat ion Manual. This  

S e c t i o n  s t a t e s  t h a t  i t  i s  not normal Board po l i cy  t o  pay 

compensation i n  r e spec t  of a  s u r g i c a l  ope ra t i on  without a l s o  

accept ing  t h e  cond i t i on  which l e a d s  t o  i t ,  which would seem t o  

d i s q u a l i f y  M r .  Gray. However, an  except ion  t o  t h i s  i s  where a  

worker w i th  a  s e r i o u s  non-compensable pre-ex is t ing  c o n d i t i o n  s u f f e r s  
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a  minor vork i n j u r y  which aggrava tes  that condi t ion .  The apparent  

purpose of t h i s  Sec t ion  i s  t o  cover  a  s i t u a t l o n  i n  which an  i n j u r y  

may cause an onse t  of symptoms which, though p r imar i l y  caused by the  

underlying cond i t i on ,  would not have been f e l t  a t  t h a t  t i m e  without 

t h e  i n j u r y .  I n  t h i s  kind of s i t u a t i o n ,  where t he  i n j u r y  had 

" t r i gge red"  t h e  immediate symptoms fol lowing t h e  i n j u r y ,  t h e  Board 

may au tho r i ze  t h e  surgery  and pay f o r  a  reasonable  per iod of 

post-operat ive recovery. I a l s o  pointed out  t h a t  M r .  Gray's 

p re -ex is t ing  cond i t i on  became symptomatic a s  a  r e s u l t  of t h e  trauma 

of t h e  work i n j u r y .  

The Commissioners maintained that the  surgery  was not n e c e s s i t a t e d  

by t h e  1980 i n j u r y  and t h e r e f o r e  t h e  " t r i gge r ing"  po l i cy  has no 

app l i ca t i on .  On t h i s  po in t  t he  Board i s  c l e a r l y  wrong. I f  t h e  1980 

i n j u r y  had never happened M r .  Gray would not have requi red  surgery  

t o  c o r r e c t  t h i s  underlying condi t ion .  

F o l l o ~ i n g  my r epo r t  t o  Cabinet,  I d iscussed  t h i s  ca se  f u r t h e r  wi th  

t h e  Chairman of t h e  Workers' Compensation Board. No change r e su l t ed .  

Recorninendat i on  : 

That the  Board accept  M r .  Gray's claim. 

Ant ic ipa ted  Impact : 

Payment of M r .  Gray's claim. 
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M r .  Alber t  Pipke 

Disabl ing  Al le rgy  

M r .  Pipke worked a s  an au to  mechanic f o r  t h i r t y - f o u r  years .  During 

h i s  l a t e r  yea r s  of employment he developed headaches and b l u r r i n g  of 

v i s i o n  which were even tua l ly  a t t r i b u t e d  t o  exposure t o  carbon 

monoxide fumes a t  h i s  p l ace  of work. Therefore he was forced  t o  

t ake  t h e  only l o g i c a l  course of a c t i o n  - he resigned.  However, no 

comparable work was a v a i l a b l e  t o  him, and a t  s i x t y  yea r s  of age 

M r .  Pipke could not be considered a good candida te  f o r  an  i n d u s t r i a l  

apprent icesh ip  i n  some o t h e r  f i e l d .  Y e t  t h e  Workers' Compensation 

Board does not cons ider  him t o  be d isab led .  

M r .  Pipke was forced  t o  engage i n  a f r u i t l e s s  and f r u s t r a t i n g  sea rch  

f o r  work f o r  two yea r s  a f t e r  h i s  turn-down by the  Board. During 

t h a t  per iod he had t o  use a cons iderable  p o r t i o n  of the savings  he 

and h i s  wife had put a s i d e  f o r  re t i rement .  A h e a r t  a t t a c k  then  

ended h i s  job seeking e f f o r t s ;  he now s u b s i s t s  on a ve t e ran ' s  

d i s a b i l i t y  pension. 

This  case  i s  t r a g i c a l l y  s i m i l a r  t o  t h a t  of M r .  Emery. I n  S p e c i a l  

Report No. 8 t o  t h e  L e g i s l a t i v e  Assembly on t h e  Workers' 

Compensation Board, I ou t l i ned  t h e  case  of M r .  Emery, a shee t  metal 

worker who l a t e  i n  h i s  c a r e e r  developed a n  acu te  a l l e r g i c  s k i n  

r e a c t i o n  t o  chromates - t h e  substance which coated t h e  shee t  metal  

wi th  which he worked. With l imi t ed  educa t ion  and no t r a i n i n g  i n  any 

o t h e r  i n d u s t r i a l  s k i l l  a r ea ,  M r .  Emery was unable t o  f i n d  comparable 

employment away from t h e  i r r i t a n t .  However, t h e  Board would n e i t h e r  

cons ide r  him f o r  a permanent p a r t i a l  d i s a b i l i t y  award, nor, because 

of h i s  age, would t h e  Board e n r o l  him i n  a n  appropr i a t e  r e t r a i n i n g  

course.  The Board's d e f i n i t i o n  of d i s a b i l i t y  did not cover  

M r .  Emery' s condi t ion .  
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I n  M r .  P ipke 's  ca se  I could on ly  repea t  t he  recommendation t h a t  I 

had made i n  t h e  e a r l i e r  s i t u a t i o n  - t h a t  t h e  f u l l  range of 

compensation be a v a i l a b l e  f o r  workers who develop a l l e r g i c  

i n d u s t r i a l  d i s ea se s .  I r e i t e r a t e d  that t h i s  would not n e c e s s a r i l y  

mean a  pension i n  every case ;  many workers would be a b l e  t o  f i n d  

s u i t a b l e  a l t e r n a t e  employment - e s p e c i a l l y  i f  r e t r a i n i n g  was o f f e r ed  

by t h e  Board. But i n  c a s e s  such a s  M r .  Emery's and M r .  Pipke 's  a  

pension would remedy the  severe  i n j u s t i c e  which r e s u l t e d  from the  

Board's p resen t  l im i t ed  view of what c o n s t i t u t e s  a  work-related 

d i s a b i l i t y .  

The Board agreed with m e  t o  t h i s  e x t e n t  - they would have t h e i r  

R e h a b i l i t a t i o n  Consul tan ts  make s p e c i a l  e f f o r t s  t o  a s s i s t  workers 

caught i n  t h i s  predicament. But t he  Board would not budge on the  

pension i s sue .  

Xecommendation : 

i. That t he  Board recognize d i s a b l i n g  a l l e r g i e s  a s  compensable 

d i s a b i l i t i e s .  

ii. That t he  Board accept  M r .  P ipke ' s  claim. 

Ant ic ipa ted  Impact: 

Increased pension c o s t s  f o r  workers who s u f f e r  d i s a b l i n g  i n d u s t r i a l  

a l l e r g i e s  and who cannot be re - t ra ined .  
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M r .  Dale Jones 

Onset of Symptoms Delayed 

Not every case  i s  c lear -cu t .  I n  some c a s e s  the  Board has t o  make a 

judgment c a l l .  When that judgment i s  l a t e r  proved t o  be wrong, 

however, the  Board sometimes r e fuses  t o  change i t s  dec is ion .  

M r .  Jones' i s  such a case.  

M r .  Jones was working a s  a buckerman i n  a logging a r e a  some 80 mi les  

west of h i s  residence.  He was picked up e a r l y  one morning by a 

f e l l o w  employee i n  a company t r u c k  and headed off  t o  work. Before 

leaving he loaded t h r e e  power saws, a f i v e  g a l l o n  g a s  can, a t o o l  

box, c lo th ing  and o t h e r  supp l i e s  f o r  a weeks' s t a y  a t  t he  logging 

camp. La te r  he t r a n s f e r r e d  t h i s  g e a r  t o  auother  company t ruck .  He 

did t h i s  while s tanding on the  ground by swinging each  i tem up over  

t he  r e spec t ive  t a i l - g a t e s ,  which were l e f t  i n  upright  pos i t i on ,  i n t o  

t h e  box of t he  second t ruck.  The g a s  cans weighed roughly 35 pounds 

each. The t o o l  box weighed i n  excess  of 50 pounds. 

Af t e r  t h r e e  t o  f o u r  hours t he  worker noted a developing pa in  i n  t h e  

lower back and upper t h i g h  a rea .  H e  did not r epo r t  t h i s  a s  he 

a sc r ibed  it t o  a pul led  muscle. He mentioned the  p a i n  l a t e r  that 

evening t o  another  worker. However, he f e l t  t h a t  a hot shower and a 

n i g h t ' s  r e s t  would r e so lve  what he thought was a muscle s t r a i n .  

The fol lowing morning t h i s  worker noted no s p e c i f i c  pa in  upon 

a r i s i n g .  However, a f t e r  j u s t  a s h o r t  per iod of work the  pa in  

increased  i n  i n t e n s i t y  u n t i l  j u s t  p r i o r  t o  noon when t h e  worker 

repor ted  the  pa in  t o  t he  foreman and explained that he would not be 

a b l e  t o  c a r r y  on. Arrangements were made by radio-phone f o r  t h e  

worker t o  see  a ch i rop rac to r  i n  a nearby town a t  4 : 0 0  p.m. that 
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day. The problem was diagnosed a s  a pinched nerve and misalignment 

of t h e  lower back. Eventual ly  t h e  cond i t i on  was diagnosed f u r t h e r  

a s  l e f t  low lumbar d i s c  d i s ea se .  M r .  Jones was t r e a t e d  f o r  t h i s  

cond i t i on  f o r  approximately one yea r  fo l lowing  the  i nc iden t .  

Although he Is now working once aga in ,  M r .  Jones has cont inued t o  

have some d i f f i c u l t i e s  with h i s  back. 

The worker 's  c l a im  f o r  compensation was denied by t h e  c la ims  

a d j u d i c a t o r  on t h e  b a s i s  that t h e  i n j u r y  r e l a t e d  t o  an i nc iden t  

which took p l ace  before  his work s h i f t  began. This  d e c i s i o n  was 

upheld by t h e  boards of review on t h e  b a s i s  that t h e r e  was 

i n s u f f i c i e n t  evidence t h a t  t h e  i n j u r y  occurred a s  a r e s u l t  of work 

r e l a t e d  a c t i v i t i e s .  When t h e  ma t t e r  vas appealed t o  t h e  

Commissioners, t h e  Commissioners concluded t h a t  t h e  c la im should not  

be allowed i n  view of t he  l eng th  of t ime between the  i n c i d e n t ,  onset  

of symptoms, and t h e  seeking of t reatment .  

It should be noted that t h e  worker had no h i s t o r y  of previous back 

problems, nor d id  x-rays r evea l  any degenera t ive  cond i t i on  of h i s  

spine.  

Under t h e  circumstances i t  appeared t o  m e  that t h e  Commissioners may 

have e r r e d  i n  concluding t h a t  t h e  time s e p a r a t i o n  between t h e  work 

Inc iden t ,  the symptoms, and t h e  t rea tment  was too g r e a t ,  

p a r t i c u l a r l y  i n  view of t h e  f a c t  t h a t  back i n j u r i e s  do not always 

develop immediately a f t e r  t h e  occurrence of t h e  i n c i d e n t  which 

causes  them. I t h e r e f o r e  recommended t o  t h e  Commissioners t h a t  they  

apply Sec t ion  99 of t he  Workers Compensation Act t o  t h i s  s i t u a t i o n  

and accept  t h e  c l a im  f o r  compensation. I was supported i n  my 

p o s i t i o n  by a comment by the  worker 's  doc to r  that i t  is very common 

f o r  p a t i e n t s  t o  have a de l ay  i n  t h e  onse t  of symptoms and t h a t  t h i s  

de lay  can  range from a few hours t o  a few days. 
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The Commissioners maintained that c o n s i d e r a t i o n  of t h e  s i g n i f i c a n c e  

of a de lay  involves  a n  e x e r c i s e  of judgment and they  can  see no 

reason  why my judgment of the ma t t e r  should be p r e f e r r e d  t o  that of 

the Board. This  response d id  not answer my criticism. The 

Commissioners were not  a b l e  t o  say why my judgment was not 

acceptab le .  I pointed ou t  c l e a r l y  where t h e  Commissioners had e r r e d  

and why. They chose not t o  answer my arguments. My criticism and 

my recommendation s tand .  

Recommendation: 

That the Board accept  M r .  Jones' claim. 

Ant ic ipa ted  Impact: 

Payment of M r .  Jones' claim. 
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APPENDIX A 

Summary of Recommendations 

Case No. 1 - M r .  Ben Temnof f  

That t h e  Board pay M r .  Temnoff's lawyer 's  b i l l  i n  t h e  amount of 

$ 7 5 9 . 4 7 .  

Case No. 2 - M r .  Michele S o r r e n t i  

That t h e  Board a l l ow  M r .  McKay an  ex t ens ion  of time t o  f i l e  h i s  

app l i ca t i on .  

Case No. 3 - M r .  S t an l ey  McKay 

That t he  Board adopt t he  p r a c t i c e  of not a t t a c h i n g  a  worker 's  

b e n e f i t s  t o  recover  h i s  company's ou ts tanding  assessment debt  u n t i l  

t he  o t h e r  a v a i l a b l e  c o l l e c t i o n  remedies have been unsuccess fu l ly  

pursued. 

Case No. 5  - M r .  John Rahn and M r .  William Relkoff 

That t h e  board r econs ide r  M r .  Rahn' s and M r .  Relkof f '  s pension 

awards under t h e  "dual  system" of c a l c u l a t i n g  awards. 

Case No. 6 - M r .  Warren Boss 

That the  Board accept  M r .  Ross' c la im.  



Case No. 7 - Mr. John Gray 

That the Board accept Mr. Gray' s claim. 

Case No. 8 - Mr. Albert Pipke 
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i .  That the Board recognize disabling allergies as compensable 

disabi l i t ies .  

i i .  That the Board accept Mr. Pipke's claim. 

Case No. 9 - Mr. Dale Jones 

That the Board accept Mr. Jones' claim. 


